
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

1■· - ~ ~ I & 
~ ii? 

FIRST COMMITTEE 358th 
MEETING 

FIFTH SESSION 

Official Records 

--7 ~ Wednesday, 11 October 1950, at 10.45 a.m. 

Lake Success, New York 

CONTENTS 
Page 

United action for peace (continued) , , , , , , , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 87 

Chairman: Mr. Roberto URDANETA ARBELAEZ (Colombia). 

United action for pence (continued) 

[Item 68]* 

GENERAL DISCUSSION (continued) 

1. Mr. QUEVEDO (Ecuador) said that he would 
restrict himself to general comments on the draft reso­
lutions (A/C.1/576 and A/C.1/575). He reserved the 
right to speak again later when the details of the draft 
resolutions were discussed. 
2. Judged from a legal point of view, the seven-Power 
draft resolution was perfectly acceptable. There was 
nothing in the Charter which expressly opposed it or 
was in implicit contradiction with the spirit behind it. 
The Assembly had, in fact, the power to make recom­
mendations even in the case of questions relating to the 
maintenance of international peace and security. The 
General Assembly's power to make recommendations 
was not blocked by the last sentence of paragraph 2 of 
Article 11. The last paragraph of Article 11, moreover, 
confirmed that point. Nor was the draft resolution con­
trary to the provisions of Article 20 of the Charter 
which laid down that the Assembly could be convoked 
at the request of the Security Council or of a majority 
of the Members of the United Nations. Although, ac­
cording to the draft resolution, seven members of the 
Council could request that a special session of the 
General Assembly should . be convoked, in practice the 
Assembly would be convened only when the majority 
of Member States had approved that request. 
3. With regard to the legal objections raised against 
the provisions relating to the maintenance of armed 
forces in the service of the United Nations, the fact 
was that the United Nations would not be able to order 
them to be used but that the General Assembly would 
at most be able to make a recommendation to that effect. 
The legality of such a recommendation could not be 
affected in any way by the clause in Article 43 of the 
Charter, according to which the armed forces were sub-

* Indicates the item number on the General Assembly agenda. 

87 

ject to the call of the Security Council. Although the 
recommendations of the General Assembly did not pos­
sess the binding force of decisions of the Security Coun­
cil, their moral force was such that Member States 
would hesitate to disregard them. 

4. Events had justified the attitude of those countries 
which, at San Francisco, had opposed introducing the 
right of veto. Fortunately, thanks particularly to the 
efforts of several countries including a number of Latin 
American States, the Charter, in recognizing the legal­
ity of regional arrangements, had given the General 
Assembly powers that were sufficiently elastic. 

5. The maintenance of peace and the strengthening of 
collective security were such serious matters that the 
seven-Power draft resolution (A/C.1/576) could not 
be discussed simply as a legal document. It was essen­
tial that the draft resolution should be adopted. States 
which cherished no intent to overthrow the established 
order in other countries, nor any territorial ambitions, 
owed it to themselves to find a procedure which would 
enable them to act at any time as effectively as they 
had done on 25 and 27 June 1950, at the time of the 
aggression upon the Republic of Korea. The seven­
Power draft resolution could not be regarded as dan­
gerous by any State which was determined to respect 
the rights of others. It was certainly not intended to 
provide a devious means of enabling a majority to 
violate the interests of a minority. It was inconceivable 
that more than forty nations would agree to wage war 
on five or six other States because those five or six 
States had a different economic and social system from 
their own. Similarly, it would be equally absurd to sup­
pose that more than forty nations could be transformed 
into docile instruments of five or six other States. 
History had already shown that two-thirds of the 
Members of the United Nations were essentially peace­
loving and that the Great Powers only had the support 
of the other nations when they acted in accordance 
with justice and morality. Force could sometimes pre-

A/C.l/SR.358 

----------~------------------



88 General Assembly-Fi{ th Session-First Committee 

vail ~>Ver justice for a certain length of time, but in the 
end 1t was only supported if it kept to the path of right 
and. truth. The majority of Members of the United 
Na~10ns would never lend their support to a policy of 
rapme and abuse. The seven-Power draft resolution 
could not harm the group of nations which might re­
gard themselves as a minority within the Organization. 
On the contrary, if their intentions were essentially 
peaceful, the adoption of that proposal would ensure 
general support from the United Nations should one 
of them one day be the object of an aggression. 

~- It. was essenti~l to ensure that a desire for perfec­
tion did not permit the current session of the General 
Assembly to come to an end without approving the 
draft resolution, which only needed one or two altera­
tions to make possible the prompt establishment of 
machinery which would be of effective assistance in the 
maintenance of international peace and security. 

7. Some consideration should perhaps be paid at once 
to the question whether the General Assembly ought 
to be _given the power to study a question only if the 
Security Council had found it impossible to exercise 
its proper functions in respect of that question. As it 
~tood, paragraph 1 of section A might result in paralys­
mg any move for action if it was interpreted as mean­
ing_ that the General Assembly could adopt recommen­
dations on a matter only after the Security Council had 
been seized of that matter; for under Article 12, the 
~eneral. Assembly could not make ai:y recommenda­
twns with regard to a matter of which the Security 
Council was seized. The question should therefore be 
e~amined whether the General Assembly could deal 
with a matter under the powers conferred upon it by 
the Charter, without its intervention being subordinate 
to the exercise by the Security Council of the functions 
assigned to it. 

8. However, if it was decided that it was necessary to 
retain paragraph 1 of section A of the draft resolution 
as it stood, it should also be pointed out that the Secur­
ity Council would first have to take a vote before ceas­
ing to deal with a matter and, consequently, before the 
General Assembly could make a recommendation on 
that matter. It followed that, if one of the members 
of the Council wished to block all action by the General 
Assemhly, it would be able to achieve its purpose by 
using delaying tactics in the Council, which would be 
particularly easy if that member were to hold the presi­
dency of the Council at a time of cri~is. Jn order to 
avoid such an eventuality, it ought to be possible to 
amend the draft resolution so as to enable the General 
Assembly to be convoked :it the request of any seven 
members of the Security Council, should they believe 
that the Council was not functioning effectively, even 
if the Council had not decided to shelve a matter, i.e., 
even if the lack of unanimity among the permanent 
members of the Council had not yet actually become 
manifest by the use of the right of veto. 

9. A similar comment coul<l be made with regard to 
paragraph 3 of section B. Under that paragraph, the 
peace observation commission could be utilized only if 
the Sccnrity Council was not exercising the functions 
assigned to it by the Charter. 

10. The text of section C, paragraph 8, of the draft 
resolution sho11lcl be studied by Member States in the 

light of their respective national constitutions. If no 
agreement or agreements of the nature mentioned in 
Article 43 of the Charter existed, an agreement should 
be concluded between the United Nations and the States 
concerned to provide for the training and equipment of 
the armed forces made available to the United Nations. 
The co-operation of States in the implementation of 
the plan necessarily depended in the last analysis upon 
their constitutional provisions. 

11. The Ecuadorian delegation was in favour of 
amending the General Assembly's rules of procedure 
as provided for in the annex to the draft resolution 
(A/C.1/576). 

12. The representative of Ecuador considered that 
the Chilean draft resolution (A/C.1/575) was just as 
important as it was useful. 

13. The fifth paragraph of the preamble to that draft 
stated unquestionable truths: that conditions of stabil­
ity and well-being were necessary for peaceful and 
friendly relations among nations and that those condi­
tions in turn could only be achieved by higher standards 
of living, full employment for all and conditions of 
economic and social progress and development. The 
sixth paragraph of the preamble rightly recalled the 
urgent need for effective and collective action. Para­
graph 1 of the operative part of the Chilean draft 
invited Member States to give consideration to the 
adoption of a pact which would strengthen the author­
ity of the United Nations. It might perhaps be desirable 
to refer the draft resolution for study to a sub-commit­
tee which would work out the provisions of such a 
pact. 

14. Paragraph 2 of the Chilean draft resolution should 
be given careful consideration in order to ascertain 
whether such a further provision consistent with the 
Charter might not be added to the seven-Power draft 
resolution (A/C.1/576). 

15. Careful study should also be given to the alterna­
tive method of convoking the General Assembly pro­
vided for in the second sub-paragraph of paragraph 3 
of the Chilean draft resolution (A/C.1/575). 

16. The Chilean draft resolution might be a little too 
ambitious, but it was aimed at strengthening the Char­
ter by expanding international economic and technical 
co-operation. It was the expression of a desire which 
would no doubt be achieved in the future. 

17. Mr. AL-JAMAL! (Iraq) thought that the paraly­
sis which had stricken the United Nations had been 
caused by lack of unanimity among the five great Powers 
i'n the Security Council. It was the duty of the First 
Committee and the General Assembly to work out the 
appropriate methods of taking collective action for peace. 
The Iraqi delegation thought that three approaches to 
the problem should be studied simultaneously. 

18. In the first place, both the First Committee and 
the General Assembly should endeavour once again to 
use the method of negotiation, mediation and concilia­
tion among the permanent members of the Security 
Council. 

19. In the second place, careful study should be given 
to the possible convocation of a General Conference of 



[ 

·' 
I 
I 

358th l\feeting-11 October 1950 89 

the Members of the United Nations for the purpose of 
reviewing the Charter so as to give greater authority 
to the United Nations by abolition of the veto. The 
right of veto was undemocratic; the argument that 
some Powers would withdraw from the United Nations 
if that right were abolished was unfounded. The seven­
Power draft resolution ( A/C.1/ 576), which was de­
signed to render the veto ineffective, was in fact tanta­
mount to a proposal for abolishing that right. 

20. In the third place, use should be made of the 
methods advocated in the seven-Power resolution, al­
though they could only sen·e as a temporary remedy. 

21. The Iraqi delegation supported the seven-Power 
draft resolution, provided that it included the amend­
ments which had already been proposed, or which 
would be proposed by the delegations of Egypt and 
Lebanon (A/C.1/581 and A/C.1/578). The measures 
proposed in the draft were in conformity with the pro­
visions of the Charter, since the General Assembly, 
under Article 10, certainly had the right to appoint 
observers, to recommend the maintenance of armed 
units by Member States, and even to recommend ap­
propriate military action when the Security Council 
failed to act. 

22. Although the General Assembly had only the 
power of making recommendations, such recommenda­
tions had a moral influence on world opinion, which 
was not less effective than a definite command. 

23. The provisions of the Charter on resistance to 
aggression were very far-reaching, involving as they 
did the right of legitimate individual or collective de­
fence in the event that both the General Assembly and 
the Security Council failed to act. 

24. The legal aspects of the seven-Power proposal 
did not present any difficulties for the Iraqi delegation. 
The proposal was intended to remedy a situation which 
might be fatal to world peace and security if the Secur­
ity Council was paralysed by the use of the right of 
veto. In that case, the General Assembly should be able 
to meet immediately; the rules of procedure should 
therefore be amended accordingly. 

25. It was important that the General Assembly should 
have an observation commission at its disposal. That 
commission should be selected on the basis of an equita­
ble geographical distribution. 

26. The Iraqi delegation considered that each Member 
State should survey the resources which it could place 
at the disposal of the United Nations. In that connexion, 
the delegation supported the Egyptian amendment 
(A/C.1/581) to establish standard rules for the train­
ing, organization and equipment of such special units. 
The Iraqi delegation also welcomed the idea of estab­
lishing a panel of military experts who would be 
available to Member States. 

27. The proposed collective measures committee 
should also be selected on the basis of geographical 
representation. Mr. Al-Jamali stressed the importance 
of the Egyptian amendment which stated that that com­
mittee should consult not only the Secretary-General, 
but also each State directly concerned before reporting 
to the Security Council and the General Assembly. 

28. The Egyptian amendment to give priority to the 
training and equipment of the national forces of States 
militarily under-equipped, deserved careful considera­
tion. In short, the Iraqi delegation supported the seven­
Power draft resolution, as amended by Egypt and 
Lebanon, as well as the draft resolution submitted by 
Chile. The delegation considered, however, that the 
Organization's principal duty was to seek preventive 
rather than remedial measures, or rather to seek both 
at the same time. The first and best preventive measure 
was to bring about a genuine understanding between 
the permanent members of the Security Council. 

29. Mr. RETTA (Ethiopia) stated that his delegation 
supported the general principles underlying the seven­
Power draft resolution ( A/C.1/576). One of the most 
important purposes and principles of the Charter 
was the maintenance of peace by means of collective 
measures. 

30. When the Charter was drawn up, it had been 
felt that the best instrument for peace would be agree­
ment between the five great Powers, and their special 
position had been recognized when the rule of unanim­
ity was laid down. Nevertheless, it was generally ad­
mitted at the present time that the mechanism of the 
Charter had shown certain weaknesses which should 
be remedied. 

31. Ethiopia had unlimited faith in the principle of 
collective security although its confidence had already 
been shaken once, at the time of the Italian invasion. 
The Emperor of Ethiopia knew from personal experi­
ence what it was to struggle against aggression, and 
had always favoured the system of collective security, 
as he had re-affirmed (S/1555) in July 1950 in con­
nexion with the situation in Korea. 

32. It was in that spirit that Ethiopia welcomed the 
proposals providing for united action for peace. 

33. The world should learn the object-lessons of the 
inefficient functioning of the League of Nations. He 
wondered, however, whether the weaknesses of the Gen­
eral Assembly and the Security Council were not 
caused by the lack of united action on the part of the 
great Powers. Perhaps an appeal should be directed 
to them, since it lay in their hands to ensure the wel­
fare of the whole world. 

34. United action for peace should not be restricted 
in either time or space and should not be directed 
against anyone or in favour of anyone. 

35. Some Member States were neighbours of countries 
which had been the cause of conflict. The system of 
collective security was, therefore, of considerable inter­
est to them, and to Ethiopia in particular. 

36. The delegation of Ethiopia supported the princi­
ples underlying the seven-Power draft resolution. They 
would make it possible to increase the efficiency of the 
security mechanism provided by the Charter. 

37. The CHAIRMAN announced that the list of 
speakers would be closed at the end of the meeting. 

38. Mr. PEARSON (Canada) stated that the USSR'i; 
professions of faith in peace were not sufficient to 
allay the fears of States which judged the intentions 
of the Government of the USSR from its policy and 



90 General Assembly-Fifth Session-First Committee 

actions. Contrary to Mr. Vyshinsky's assertions ( 357th 
meeting), it was not the principle of the unanimity of 
the five permanent members of the Security Council 
which was at issue but the inactivity and paralysis of 
the Security Council owing to abuse of the veto. 

39. If it were true, as Mr. Vyshinsky claimed, that 
the veto had been a means of protecting the rights of 
the minority, the Canadian delegation would have had 
perhaps even more sympathy for that institution than 
Mr. Vyshinsky had shown at the Belgrade Conference, 
where he had been one of the majority. References 
had been made ad 1ia11sc11111 to the so-called automatic 
majority. But should the Committee not ask what was 
the opinion of the delegations of India, Egypt, Ecuador, 
Burma, Yugoslavia, Syria and others who did not wish 
to belong to any bloc of States and who had demon­
strated the truth of that statement by their voting 
record? While Mr. Vyshinsky showed himself so so­
licitous of the rights of the minority, he flouted the 
rights of the majority, which, according to him, auto­
matically made illegal, scandalous and unjustifiable 
recommendations when it did not include the five dele­
gations of the minority. 

40. As to the USSR representative's reference to the 
inactivity of the Interim Committee, did that argument 
not contradict its author, who had formerly opposed 
the establishment of that Committee on the pretext that 
it was intended to by-pass the Security Council? If 
the United States of America had had the power which 
Mr. Vyshinsky attributed to it, why had it not com­
pelled the Interim Committee to supplant the Security 
Council? 

41. Mr. Pearson paid tribute to the high initiative 
of the Chilean delegation and hoped that its draft reso­
lution would be studied in conjunction with the seven­
Power draft. 

42. The aggression provoked in Korea in June had 
revealed the great danger confronting the United Na­
tions because of the lack of any system of collective 
security. Undoubtedly, the Security Council's action 
had been effective, but that action had been due solely 
to a fortunate combination of circumstances. As soon 
as the representative of the USSR had returned to the 
Council, its activities had again been paralysed by 
systematic obstruction. Events had also shown that 
most of the Members had not been prepared to partici­
pate in prompt action to combat aggression. 

43. One lesson which could be learned for the future 
from that experience was that, in order to maintain 
peace, other organs of the United Nations, and in par­
ticular the General Assembly, must be strengthened to 
counteract delays or shortcomings of the Council. That 
<licl not mean that the vital role which the Charter gave 
the Security Council must be eliminated. The General 
Assembly should not be substitute_d for t~e Se~urity 
Council, but should only assume its functions 1f the 
Security Council failed to carry out its task or was 
prevented from ~loing so. It was clear that in sucl~ ca~es 
the United Nations could not watch the Orgamzatton 
fail without attempting to remedy the situation. Re­
course to a system of regional arrangements would not 
suffice. \Vhat was needed was to reinforce the United 
Nations itself. It was a matter of supporting right with 
might in order to stop aggressors and ensure the im-

plementation of Assembly recommendations accepted 
by the Members. It was clear that the Assembly could 
only make recommendations; but those recommenda­
tions could have great force when they were based on 
right and justice. 

44. Contrary to Mr. Vyshinsky's assertion, the seven­
Power draft resolution was not illegal. The Charter ex­
pressly provided for the powers it was proposed to give 
to the General Assembly. Moreover, the Assembly 
would only use them if the Security Council failed to 
act. If Mr. Vyshinsky's viewpoint were adopted, the 
Committee would have to resign itself to admitting that 
the United Nations could not take any measures to 
safeguard peace and security when the Security Council 
was unable to act because of the veto of one of its per­
manent members. The Canadian delegation could not 
admit that the Charter sanctioned such a ridiculous 
contention. 

45. The seven-Power draft resolution did not contain 
a revolutionary interpretation of the Charter. It merely 
made provision for the use of certain powers which the 
General Assembly already had under the Charter, in 
order to avoid certain situations in which the United 
Nations might be paralysed. 

46. It was strange that Mr. Vyshinsky should claim, 
on the basis of Article 11, paragraph 2, of the Charter, 
that the Assembly should automatically refer any ques­
tion requiring action to the Security Council without 
even using its right of discussion under Article 10. Was 
it not he who had proposed on numerous occasions, 
that the Assembly should adopt important measures on 
questions which were or might be on the agenda of the 
Council? A week earlier ( 352nd meeting), he had asked 
that the Assembly should recommend the withdrawal 
of United Nations troops from Korea. That was never­
theless a question requiring very serious action. Clearly, 
the statements of the USSR representative were char­
acterized neither by logic nor by scrupulous respect for 
the provisions of the Charter. In fact, the action re­
f erred to in Article 11, paragraph 2, was that which the 
Security Council could take under the Chapter of the 
Charter which defined its functions. That action was 
not, therefore, to be confused with the recommendations 
which the Assembly was empowered to make to Mem­
ber States under the provisions of that same Article 11, 
paragraph 2. Moreover, such recommendations would 
only be made if the Security Council failed to take defi­
nite action. The seven-Power draft resolution merely 
provided that the Assembly should make the legal and 
constitutional recommendations it deemed appropriate. 

47. It appeared that section A of the draft resolution 
(A/C.1/576) commanded almost unanimous approval. 
It was right that it should be possible for the General 
Assembly to be convened within twenty-four hours, in 
case of emergency, so as to prevent an aggressor from 
deriving advantage from a surprise attack. The interval 
was not too short, even for the USSR delegation, the 
more so since that delegation's permanent representa­
tive on the Security Council might automatically rep­
resent his government at a special session of the Gen­
eral Assembly. 

48. Section B, relating to the establishment of a peace 
observation commission, seemed to have received the 
approval of the USSR delegation, which had, however, 



358th Meeting-11 October 1950 91 

stated that the proposed commission must not be the 
· tool of any one group of States. That was a point well 
taken, and it was to be hoped that all States, including 
the USSR, would remember it. 

49. Section C, particularly paragraph 8 of that sec­
tion, was of particular importance, for it placed a police 
force at the disposal of the United Nations and enabled 
small States, who normally did not have land forces 
available, to defend themselves against the aggressor in 
case of surprise attack. That paragraph did not estab­
lish an international armed force as such, but it did 
provide for the formation of national contingents which 
might be used by the United Nations while being at the 
same time available for the national defence of each 
State. It was not true, as Mr. Vyshinsky had claimed, 
that that provision violated the Charter. On the con­
trary, it might be said that it did not go far enough. 
It was true that the General Assembly could only make 
recommendations and that the States Members would 
have to decide whether they accepted or rejected them. 
It might, however, be hoped that a recommendation 
based on justice and a true knowledge of the facts 
would have such authority that no loyal Member of 
the United Nations could ignore it. 

50. The Government of Canada had immediately sent 
naval and air forces to Korea to repel the aggressor. 
At the time, that Government did not have sufficient 
land forces at its disposal. Since then, the Parliament 
of Canada had authorized the establishment of a special 
force to carry out the undertakings which Canada had 
assumed in virtue of its participation in the United 
Nations. All Member States should take similar steps. 

51. Section D of the joint draft resolution was com­
plementary to section C. It was quite reasonable to sug­
gest that a temporary ad hoe committee should report 
to the Security Council and the General Assembly be­
fore its next session on the methods by which the prin­
ciples set forth for the formation of national contingents 
might be worked out. That committee might, for ex­
ample, consider the arguments for and against an inter­
national force composed, not of national contingents, 
but of United Nations volunteers. No question arose, 
in that section, of the United Nations making strategical 
plans, of placing armed forces at the disposal of the 
Secretary-General, or of conducting an inquisitorial 
investigation of the resources of Member States. The 
doubts raised by the Australian representative ( 356th 
meeting) with regard to that section of the joint draft 
resolution were probably due to the fact that he was 
attributing to the committee far more extensive powers 
and responsibilities than had been contemplated by the 
authors of the proposal. 

52. It was surprising that the alternative suggested by 
the USSR delegation to the joint seven-Power draft 
resolution was that the Military Staff Committee should 
be asked to resume its work and that the Security Coun­
cil should be asked to work out military agreements 
under Article 43 of the Charter. Actually, it was ob­
struction by the delegation of the USSR which had 
hitherto prevented the Military Staff Committee from 
functioning and military agreements from being con­
cluded. If the USSR delegation was modifying its point 
of view and desired to co-operate with the other mem­
bers of the Security Council in applying Chapter VII 

of the Charter, that might be regarded as excellent 
news. If that was not the case, the USSR proposal had 
no practical value. 
53. It was even more surprising that Mr. Vyshinsky 
should have recalled the provisions of Article 106 of the 
Charter, dealing with the transitional security arrange­
ments which the Allied Powers were to make jointly 
immediately after the war. Did Mr. Vyshinsky mean 
that the transitional period should last for as long as 
the USSR could frustrate action in the Security Coun­
cil and the Military Staff Committee? If, on the con­
trary, the representative of the USSR desired that gen­
uine consultation should now take place under Article 
106, such a tendency could only be applauded. 
54. The Canadian delegation reserved its right to 
speak later on the two draft resolutions submitted by 
the USSR delegation (A/C.1/579 and A/C.1/580). It 
welcomed there and then, however, some ideas in those 
draft resolutions, which were not incompatible with the 
seven-Power draft, but supplementary to it. 

SS. That draft resolution (A/C.1/576) could obvi­
ously be improved. Its sponsors would therefore regard 
favourably any amendment that might make it still 
more effective. 

56. HASSAN Pasha (Egypt) said he was happy to 
support any effort on behalf of peace and against ag­
gression. The Egyptian delegation had always been in 
favour of the broadening of the powers of the General 
Assembly, since extraordinary powers had been given 
to the five permanent members of the Security Council, 
and the principle of the sovereign equality of States 
should be respected in the United Nations. 

57. It was necessary to provide for effective measures 
to prevent the calamitous consequences of an aggres­
sion that might start at any time and at any place in 
the world. No one, therefore, could object to the aims 
of the various draft resolutions submitted for the pur­
pose of instituting an international force capable of re­
pelling aggression. 

58. Prima facie, the seven-Power draft resolution 
seemed to be the most practical. The Egyptian delega­
tion had therefore submitted an amendment (A/C.1/ 
581) designed to make it more effective. 

59. General ROMULO (Philippines) thought that 
the objections to the seven-Power proposal expressed 
by the representatives of Australia (356th meeting) 
and of the USSR (357th meeting) deserved a detailed 
reply. 

60. The representative of Australia was opposed to 
section D of the draft resolution on the ground that the 
functions assigned to the collective measures committee 
were too vague and that the reports to be submitted by 
that committee might in some cases be insufficient and 
in others so detailed that they might provide informa­
tion which could be of value to a potential aggressor. 
If paragraph 10 of the draft resolution was not clear 
enough, the necessary drafting corrections would of 
course have to be made. The danger indicated by the 
Australian representative would, however, be allayed if 
paragraph 10 of t:1e draft resolution were read in rela­
tion to paragraph 7. It was not the proposed committee, 
but the individual States, which would have to survey 



92 General Assembly-Fifth Session-First Committee 

their resources and decide what they could place at 
the disposal of the United Nations. The report of the 
collective measures committee would be based on the 
information submitted by the various Member States 
to the Secretary-General. Paragraph 7 should perhaps 
be· made clearer in that respect. Thus, the information 
gathered could not be of great value to a potential ag­
gressor, but would probably be such as to deter him 
from carrying out his aggressive intentions. 

61. The danger entailed by that method was not 
greater than that entailed in the application of Article 
43 of the Charter, nor than that incurred by the various 
States Members when they were called upon to state 
the nature and scope of the assistance they were able to 
contribute to the United Nations action against aggres­
sion in Korea. The danger of the disclosure of strategi­
cal plans was also illusory. Since the essential purpose 
of the draft resolution was to avoid the recurrence of a 
situation that might compel the United Nations to im­
provise action in face of an attack prepared long before, 
it was time to begin preparing plans for repelling any 
potential aggressor. There could be only advantage and 
no danger in that. 

62. The delegation of the Philippines was prepared to 
accept Mr. Spender's suggestions that the Security 
Council should be asked to make a fresh effort to con­
clude the agreements referred to in Article 43 of the 
Charter, and that the five great Powers should be in­
vited to consult together concerning the transitional 
arrangements foreseen in Article 106. However a time­
limit should be set for those consultations and for the 
conclusion of the military agreements so as not once 
more to reduce the United Nations to impotence at a 
particularly critical moment. 

63. The sponsors of the draft resolution would cer­
tainly support any amendment proposed by the Aus­
tralian representative with a view to including in the 
seven-Power draft a reference to the right of individual 
or collective self-defence and to the provisions con­
tained in the Charter for regional arrangements and 
agencies. 

64. In the USSR representative's view, the principle 
of the unanimity of the five pem1anent members of the 
Security Council was justified by the fact (which was 
quite true at the end of the Second World War) that 
an act of aggression or breach of the peace could be 
prevented only by the joint action of those States which 
had at once the necessary political, economic and mili­
tary power. There were, however, two typ_es of aggres­
sion: (a) the case where an act of aggression or breach 
of the peace was committed by a permanent member, in 
which case the United Nations could not prevent the 
dispute, Articles 41 and 42 could ~ot apply, a;1d Articles 
51 and 52, relating to the classical remedies of self­
defence and military alliances, could alone afford the 
victims of aggression any security; and ( b) the case of 
aggression committed by a State other than one of the 
five permanent members. It was highly probable that 
the aggressor or the victim would always be able to 
obtain some support from one of the permanent mem­
bers of the Council. In most cases, therefore, the Coun­
cil would deal with questions affecting one or more 
!!reat Powers. That applied in the case of Korea, _where 
the veto had been avoided purely by chance. Previously, 

----------

in the dispute between the Nether lands and Indonesia, 
a Power other than the USSR had also used its veto.1• 

The conclusion was therefore to be drawn that a breach 
of the peace or act of aggression by any nation great or 
small would never be punished by the Security Coun­
cil, because of the probability of disagreement between 
the great Powers and of the use of the veto by one of 
them. 

65. Such, unfortunately, were the actual political con­
ditions at the present time, caused by the ever-increas­
ing divergence between East and West. 

66. The draft resolutions submitted by the delegation 
of the USSR (A/C.1/579 and A/C.1/580) for the re­
newal of consultations between the five permanent 
members and for the application of the military agree­
ments provided for in Article 43 of the Charter, would 
appear in some measure to meet the wishes of the Aus­
tralian representative. Those draft resolutions were not 
at first sight incompatible with the draft resolution 
submitted by the seven Powers, provided, however, that 
if no agreement between the great Powers were reached 
within a certain period of time, the other Members of 
the United Nations were able to consider other action 
to safeguard their own security and world peace. 

67. Fortunately, the provisions of the Charter were 
sufficiently flexible to enable the General Assembly to 
perform its functions with regard to the maintenance 
of peace and security. The effect of the seven-Power 
draft resolution (A/C.1/576) was by no means to 
weaken the Security Council; it was not possible to 
weaken a body which already had so little power. That 
draft did not take away any of the Security Council's 
powers, but merely provided for a supplementary pro­
cedure for maintaining international peace and security 
if the Security Council failed to act. 

68. The Security Council acted on behalf of all the 
States Members of the United Nations. If the Council 
was unable to reach a decision, the Member States 
were obviously entitled to contemplate an alternative 
procedure. The seven-Power draft resolution, in con­
formity with Articles 10, 11 and 12 of the Charter, did 
not substitute one body for another, but established a 
second line of defence in case the first failed. 

69. The General Assembly's power of discussion and 
recommendation was not impaired by the provision in 
the Charter whereby any question on which action was 
necessary was to be referred to the Security Council. 
The action taken by the General Assembly on the sev­
eral questions of Spain, Greece, Korea and Palestine 
constituted so many precedents which had laid down 
the first legal principles confirming the Assembly's 
power to take action for the maintenance of peace and 
security without prior or subsequent reference to the 
Security Council. General R6mulo would agree to refer­
ence being made in the resolution to the fact that it 
would be transmitted to the Security Council, but that 
would not mean that any recommendations in the reso­
lution would have to be submitted to the Council for 
approval. 

70. The convening of a special session was a proce­
dural matter. The Charter said nothing to the contrary. 

1 See Official Records of tlie Security Council, Srcond Year, 
No. 83. 

- - - -- -



358th Meeting-11 October 1950 93 

In any case, that was a small matter, for in an emer­
gency, the necessary majority of the Member States 
would surely take the initiative of convening a special 
session. 

71. The representative of the Philippines was glad 
that the USSR representative supported sections A and 
B of the draft resolution in principle. Mr. Vyshinsky's 
objection regarding the time-limits for calling a special 
session should not stand, since the question was one of 
calling a session in an emergency, with a view to pre­
venting an aggressor from accomplishing his purposes. 
Moreover, in the absence of the Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of the USSR, the permanent representative of 
the USSR at the United Nations would certainly be 
able to represent his delegation satisfactorily. 

Printed in U.S.A. 

72. General Romulo agreed with the view of the 
USSR representative that the peace observation com­
mittee should be constituted on as broad a basis as pos­
sible, but felt that the committee had to be a means to 
an end. It was not sufficient for such a committee to 
observe and report to the Security Council and the 
General Assembly on any situation likely to endanger 
the peace; adequate guarantees must also be given that 
the evidence collected by the proposed peace observation 
committee would lead to effective action by the Security 
Council in the first instance and then, should the latter 
fail to act, by the General Assembly. Observation and 
action, the means and the end, must be made interde­
pendent. Otherwise, the United Nations would be 
doomed to impotence. 

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m. 

B-39100-October 1950-3,400 




